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THE SECOND MASONIC TEMPLE

ADDRESS: Gdroadway & Jackson 5ts., Helena Lewis and Clark County,Montar
DUWNER ¢ The State Publishing Co.

OCCUPANT: The State Publishing Co.

USE : Gffice space and storage {upper floars)

ARCHITECTURAL AND HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE:

Gold was discovered in Last Chance Gulch in
the gsummer of 1864, and the news caused a stampede of
hopeful miners to the area. Within a few months a
citizen's committee met to lay out streets, elect town
commissioners and name the settlement, Last Chance
Gulch became "Helena”,

- The Masons of the town were first gathered
together in March, 1665, for the funeral of a man who
had requested Masonic rites. They soon met again and
requested a dispensation to work which was granted in
July, 1865, The lodge was grganized in August, and
reqular meetings were scheduled. In November, 1865,
Hglena City Lodge No., 10, A.F. & A.M. received its
charter, They occupied rented quarters until the next
veaT when they bought and completed a building an
8roadway which became known as Masonic Hall, Many of
the men praominent in the develapment and early history
of the Montana Territory were Masons,. and many served
in various offices of the local Masonic bodies.

In 1872, work was started on a new Masonic
Temple, ths hall having bsen outgrown by the numerous
Maseonic organizations then active in Helena, This
first Masonic Temple served until 1884, when there was
again need for expansion. The architectural firm of
T. F. Mathias and Fred Heinlein was commissioned to
design the second Masonic Temple. It is a three story,



i S o M it T R et nR R ik et LA P AR | i1 e s 44 e e

Second Masonic Temple
HABS No. MT~-34

fagas 2

brick building with stome trim in the prevalant
Renaissance style., At the time it was finished,
the building was the pride of ths entire city and
was hailed as a fine mark of local craftsmanship
and materials.

HISTORICAL INFORMATION:

The decision to erect a nmew Masonic Temple
in Helena was announced in Daecember, 1883, The
Helena Herald on Dscember 13, 1883, announced:

"The property is located on the northeast
corngr of Broadway & Jackson Stregset, ome block off
" Main, and in the most central part of the city. It
is in every respect a very desirable plot of ground.
It has a frontage on Broadway of 38 fest, with a depth
on Jackson Strest of 100 feaet. The price paid was
$10,000, and possession i{s to be given in April, 1884,
About the datse it passes into their hands, the frat-
ernity will commence the erection of a maginificent
Temple building of threse lofty floors., Tha structure
will bs after the best modern form in architecture
and in point of beauty will probably excel any build-
ing yet srectsd in the Capitol City. The ground floor
will be designed for business purposes, whila the
sacond and third storiss will be devoted altogether
to the uses of the brotherhood." In Februvary, 1884,
an adjoining 20' x 108' strip of land was purchased,
to qive a total frontage on Broadway of S8°',

Thg site on which the new Templs was to bs
built was garlier occupled by the Whitlatch Building,
erected by James W, whitlatch, said to have been the
first man to make a million dollars in Montama mining,
owner of the famogus Whitlatch-Union Mine, Whitlatch
was also interested in newspaper publishing, and the
Whitlatch Building was the firet building devoted to
publishing to be erectsd in ths city. The Whitlatch
Building was destroyed in the fire of 1872, and
shortly thereafter the Intermational Hall, a restaurant,
was built on the site, International Hall was torn
down to make way for the new Templse.
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In September, 1884, T. F. Mathias and F,
Heinlein, architects of Helena, receivsd the $250 award
in the dgsign competition for the Temple and were
appointed supervising architscts. Excavation for the
new building was done by John Hill, who removed 800
yards of dirt and 1,800 yards of rock. It was the
biggest excavation to date in Helena., 8y November,
dahn and Wirth, who had the contract for the masonry
and granite for the basement had completed their work
and the basement was covered for the winter.

The contract to build the Maseonic Templs
from the foundation up was awarded to L. F. Evans
in May, 1885 for his bid of $24,369., The foundation
work dons the previous year had cost $6,000, and
814,000 had been spent for the site. It was expected
that the final cost of the Temple when complete and
furnished, sxclusive of the site, would be approximately
$50,000.

On the morning of June 16, 1885, the Grand
Lodge of Montana Masons assembled to perform the cersmony
of laying the cernserstone of the new Masonic Templs.
Gathering at the old Temple at Main and Edwards at
11 a.m,, the Grand Lodge officers and acting Grand
Lodge officers marched to the site of the cornerstone
in the northeast corner of the Templs. Most Worship-
ful Grand Master Sam W, Langhorne, publisher of the
Bozeman Chronicle and Mayor eof 8ozeman, was presiding

officer at the ceremony., (B8efore the year was out,
Langhorne would bs appointed Register of the Helena
Land Office by President Grover Cleveland and would
resign as Mayor of Bozeman in order to move to Helena.)
The cornerstone laid that day can be seen clsarly to-
day, although it is partially obstructed by a wooden
stairway at the back of the State Publishing Co,.

By Thanksgiving of 1885, tenants began to
move into the rmew Temple building. There were four
large rooms available for rent on the first floor,
four offices on the second, and basement space., The
remainder of the building was reserved for Masonic
uses. Territorial Secretary Webb occupied tweo of the
second floor offices, and District Judge Cornelius
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Hedges moved his law officas into the Temple building.

In February, 1886, tha trustees of the Masonic
Temple were notifisd that the Post 0ffice Dspartment had
accepted their offer to lease rooms in the new building,
and would occupy the southwest corner room on the ground
fFloor plus the large room behind it. B8y April all avail-
able space was rented, including the basement arsa. The
monthly income of 3440 was expected to meet all expanses
of the building and help reduce thse 330,000 indebtedness.

Early in December, 1885, the Masons of Helana
completed transfer of all furniture and squipment from
the old Temple to the new, and the first amnual slsction
of officers in the new Temple was held December 14, .
Among the groups meeting in the new Temple were Helena
Lodge N0,.3; King Solomon's Lodge No.33; Helana Council
No.3, Royal and Select Masters; Helena Commandary No.Z,
Knights Templar; Helena Chapter No.2, Royal Arch Masons;
and Morning Star Lodge No.S.

Dedicated by the Grand Lodge of Montana, A.F,
& A.M,, on Dctober 6, 1886, the building continued to
serve Helena Masonry until 1542 when the bodies moved
into the Consistory Shrine Temples thay had then built,
The Second Masonic Temple building is now owned and
occupied by the State Publishing Company which has its
of ficas on the first floor and uses the upper floors
for storags.

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL AND REFERENCES:

Campbell, William C,, From the Quarrisgs gof Last Chancsg
Gulch, Helena, Mont., 1951, vol. I.

Halena Harald, Helsna, Mgntana, 1883-6.

Helgna Independent, Helena, Montana, Novembar 14, 1885,

Leeson, M, A,, History of Mgntana 1739-1885, larner,
Beers & Co., Chicago, 1885,

Thresher, Frank L., Halena Illustrated, 1890.

ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION:

This building was once the pride of Helena,
It was designed by a local architectural firm, the stons
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was quarried locally, the bricks mades in @ local bricke
yard, and the window and door trim and the deccrative
cornice of native granite wsre executed by local crafts-
men, It stands in mute testimony to the excellsnce of
Helena's early day industries. Recent "modsrnization"
hes altered the basement and first floor appearancs,

but the upper floors and cornice remain much as they

did when occupied by ths Masons. :

EXTERIOR:
Overall Dimsnsions ~ a thres story structure

with @ frontage of 28' (on Broadway) and a depth of
100" {on Jackson St.).

Foundation - native granits

Wall Construction - red brick bearing walls
above the partially exposed stone foundation walls of
the basement.

Openings - Entrances: The main entrance to
the upper floors is centrally located on the south
facade, Here the brick arched opening was crowned
with a decorative false balcony. The doorway was
framed by pssudo-engaged brick pilasters raissd
on decorative stone plinth and in turn supporting
the arch,

Other openings on the south facade were two re-
cesssd rectangular "store front" openings. Due
to the slope of the strest and the half-exposed
basement {on Jackson Street)} these openings which
were symmstrically balanced on either side of the
upper floor entry wers raised several steps above
the sidewalk. 0On the wsst, or Jackson Strest,
facade, a stone rectangular framsed entry led to
the basement level a half-flight below grade.

The original doors and transoms have been re-
placed or altered to ths extent that their orig-
inal forms are lost. An early stching indicates
rectangular transoms above the entries to the
first flopor rented spaces and an oval transom
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for the upper floor entry.

Windows: The building had wood double-hung
?/2 windows on the second and third floors
framed by engaged brick columns similar to
those of the entry, and having either a rec-
tangular cut stons lintel or ?in the case of
the central window on the second floor in each
of the three sections of the front facade) a
brick arch with a stone kaystone which covered
a double window framed with brick pilasters.

Cornice - ornately carved native granite

Roof - originally tin

Chimneys - brick, since removed
INTERIOR:

Floor Plan -~ The original floor plan has
heen sxtensively altered since the Masonic bodies
gave up the building., The Helena Independent of

November 14, 1885, provided a description of the
interior arrangement:

"The first floor is divided into three
large rooms, two fronting on droadway and one on
Jackson Street., They are intended for storerooms
and are well suited for the purpose,

"On the saecond floor there are four front

of fices, a reception room, library, main hall, two
dressing rooms, besides toilet rooms and closets.
The four fFront rooms are intended to rent as offices,
and two of them have already been engaged by Mr. Yehb
for the Territorial secretary's office. Thae rest of
this floor is devoted to Masconic purposes.

“The third floor cantains some fine apart-
ments., In the rear of the building overlooking Jackson
Street, the Commandery is situated. This fine room runs
the whole width of the Temple and has a north and west
exposure. Cloak and ante-rooms connect with it, and
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adjolining it on the south is the banquset hall, a

large rogom with a fine view of the city. At the
caorner cverlooking drocadway and Jackson Street is
situated the Chapter and Cguncil chamber, another
large room lighted on twg sides. HBesides these, as
aon the gther floors, there are ante-roaoms and claosets.
The whgle of the third flcor is for Masonic uses.

"The building is very commodious, and in
addition to the three floors possesses a basement,
which affaords more eligible office rooms that will
nogt long remain tenantless.”

Stairway - tnclosed stairway from center
front facade tao upper floars,

floor - Both hardwocd and softwaged T & G
floors, Lodge room carpeted.

wall and Ceiling Finish -~ Plaster and some
wallpaper.

Doors = Wocd panelled, varying sizes.

Trim - Elaborately maoulded pine and scme

gak trim.
Har dware « Cast Iron.

~

Lighting -~ Gas; now converted to electric,

Hegating ~ S5team,

Prepared by: John DeBaas, December 1967
Reviewed by: Eleni Silverman, September 1983



